Clarification Questions and Responses: Soil Sample Metabarcoding for Natural England’s Long Term Monitoring Network 2025 – 2026

Responses are provided in italics. 

Questions - Specification:

1. Please may we ask the Authority to confirm how many samples are expected to be analysed under this contract. The specification indicates 280 samples remain University of Sheffield and James Hutton Institute, however the specification seems to indicate bidders should price for how many samples they can realistically analyse within the £49,500 budget. E.g., there is not an expectation to be able to analyse all 280 samples within the £49,500 budget. Is this correct?

It may be possible to analyse all available samples under the budget (considering also the requirements for replication, which will increase the total number of analyses required beyond the number of samples); however, to allow for the possibility that this is not feasible, then yes, it is correct that the specification allows for potential suppliers to propose the number of samples they feel can be realistically analysed within the budget, if this is not all of those available. 

1. Please may we ask the Authority to confirm the sample transport expectations placed on bidders? Will University of Sheffield and James Hutton Institute prepare samples for transport at -80oC by packaging them up in suitably insulated transport containers with dry ice etc ready for specialist courier collection? Or will the supplier need to attend each site with the correct transport packaging and dry ice and package samples up themselves, either ready for courier collection or transport back to our laboratory in one of our own vehicles?

Arrangements would be made for the appropriate packaging of samples ready for transport at their respective locations; quotations should only include costs associated with courier collection / transport to the suppliers laboratory.

1. Please may we ask the Authority to confirm what will happen to samples we collect if not all soil is used for extraction? Will there be a requirement to return the frozen samples back to University of Sheffield and James Hutton Institute, or will bidders need to arrange for disposal? If return at -80oC is anticipated, should bidders include this in their pricing?

Any unused soil and extracted DNA will most likely require further transport at -80 following the completion of the project; quotations should include costs for suitable packaging of remaining samples, but do not need to include costs for their onward transport. 

Questions – terms and conditions

1. Liability - Clause 13.2:  In the draft terms and conditions, the prospective bidder notes a £5m cap, which far exceeds the contract or Order value. Please would the Authority confirm that this cap on liability can be negotiated around the time the Order is to be issued and aligned relative to the value of the services provided? In the alternative can cap set out in clause 13.2 be set at £500k or 120% of the charges paid/payable to the Contractor from the outset to give the prospective suppliers some comfort that the level of risk for the Contractor will be more proportionate to the contract value?

The authority would be willing to change the contractor liability cap (clause 13.2) to £500K. This will be updated in the draft order form for any winning supplier.

1. Liability - Clause 13.4: this separate cap for indemnities set at £5m per claim is again disproportionate to the potential value of the services to any Contractor.  Please would the Authority therefore limit such cap to £1m or 125%, or include indemnities within the cap stated at clause 13.2?  
1. Termination: Noting that the prospective Contractor would have no express rights of termination under the Natural England Terms and Conditions, please would the Authority confirm that the Contractor shall be afforded reasonable rights to terminate or suspend the contract where the Authority: (i) materially or persistently breaches any of its obligations (including non-payment); (ii) is in actual or alleged breach of the governing law; (iii) demonstrates that it is unable to pay its debts as they fall due; or (iv) brings the name of the Contractor into disrepute.  In the alternative, please would the Authority confirm that it would mutualise clauses 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4 and 15.2.9?
1. Replacement services/Deliverables: Clause 15.7 – please would the Authority confirm that any costs for replacement Deliverables shall only be on a like-for-like basis and make the necessary tweak to such wording?
1. Set off: Clause 5.9 – Please would the Authority confirm that such rights shall be subject to prior written notice of not less than 10 working days, setting out valid reasons for such deductions, and limited to sums actually due to the Authority set out on any Order only?
1. Price review mechanism:  we understand that this is a short-term requirement currently, but please would the Authority confirm that any longer-term requirement would be subject to an annual independent price review mechanism such the RFI/CPI?

As per the RFQ section “Condition of Contract” the Authority will not accept any changes to these terms and conditions proposed by a supplier.


